
[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 1 of 11 

 
 

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH 
[DRAFT] PLANNING COMMISION 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING  

JUNE 27, 2012 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Manhattan Beach, California, 
was held on the 27th day of June, 2012, at the hour of 6:30 p.m., in the City Council Chambers 
of City Hall, at 1400 Highland Avenue, in said City. 
 
1.  ROLL CALL  
 
Present:  Conaway, Gross, Ortmann*, Paralusz, Chairperson Andreani 
Absent:  None 
Staff Present:  Richard Thompson, Community Development Director 

Laurie Jester, Planning Manager   
Recording Secretary, Sarah Boeschen 
 

*Commissioner Ortmann arrived at 8:00 p.m. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –      June 13, 2012 
 
Commissioner Conaway requested that the second sentence of the eighth paragraph on page 1 
of the June 13 minutes be corrected to read: “Commissioner Conaway thanked Sandra Seville-
Jones for her service on the Commission.  He commented commended her for her for her 
clarity of thought and ability to clarify complex issues.”    
 
Commissioner Conaway requested that the first sentence of the ninth paragraph on page1of the minutes 
be corrected to read:  “Commissioner Gross indicated said that the Commission and City have benefited 
from the wisdom that Sandra Seville-Jones has provided as a Commissioner.”    
 
Commissioner Conaway requested that the first sentence of the third paragraph on page 7 be corrected 
to read: “Chairperson Commissioner Paralusz thanked the applicant for coming before the 
Commission.” 
 
Commissioner Conaway requested that the ninth sentence in the first paragraph under “Directors Items” 
on page 8 of the minutes be corrected to read: “She stated that then there will be public hearings before 
the Commission and City Council . . .” 
 
Commissioner Conaway requested that the eleventh sentence in the first paragraph under “Directors 
Items” on page 8 of the minutes be corrected to read: “She commented that the developer is asking for a 
Development Agreement so that they have the ability to develop the project . . .” 
 
Commissioner Paralusz requested that the last sentence of the fourth paragraph on page 5 of the minutes 
be revised to read: “She indicated, however, that she does not feel that enclosing the need to enclose the 
balcony is a hardship and, therefore, is struggling to find that the third criteria for a Variance is 
satisfied.” 
 
Commissioner Gross requested that the fifth sentence of the first paragraph under Item “B” on page 12 
of the minutes be revised to read:  “She said that the City Council has indicated that they are satisfied 
with the City’s current practice of reviewing alcohol licenses individually through the Use Permit 
process and that no changes to these practices will be made at this time.”   
 

Action 
 
A motion was MADE and SECONDED (Gross/Paralusz) to APPROVE the minutes of June 
13, 2012, as amended.   



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 2 of 11 

 
 

 
AYES:  Conaway, Gross, Paralusz, Chairperson Andreani 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Ortmann 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
3.  AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
4.  GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
06/27/12-2 Variance From Building Height Standards for an Existing Three-Family 

Residence on the Property Located at 2505 Crest Drive 
 
Director Thompson commented that a public hearing regarding the item was held at the last 
Planning Commission meeting, and the Commission directed staff to prepare a draft Resolution 
denying the Variance request.  He pointed out that changes have been made to Section 3 of the 
Resolution included with the staff report.  He said that there are no other changes to the draft 
Resolution.  He said that staff’s recommendation is to approve the Resolution.   
 

Commission Discussion 
 
Chairperson Andreani asked whether it would be appropriate for language to be included in the 
draft Resolution regarding work on the project being started before a permit was received.   
 
Director Thompson indicated that he would not recommend adding language regarding work 
being done on the project before permits were received.  He said that the Commission’s 
decision regarding the project should be based on the merits of the case.  He said that the 
reasons the Commission denied the request have been documented in the draft Resolution.  He 
pointed out that background information has been included in the staff report which will be 
included with the information that is provided to the City Council.   
 
In response to a comment from Commissioner Gross, Director Thompson indicated that it is 
important that the Commission evaluate the project that is proposed regardless of whether or 
not it had been started without a permit.   
 
Commissioner Gross asked whether the fact that residential height Variances are very rarely 
approved should be considered in determining whether or not a special privilege would be 
granted in approving such a Variance request.   
 
Director Thompson said that the Commissioners must make findings for projects based on the 
investigation of a particular project and reach their own conclusion as to whether approval 
would constitute a special privilege.  He said that a precedent is not established based upon the 
investigation of the unique aspects of a particular project.   
 

Action 
 
A motion was MADE and SECONDED (Paralusz/Conaway) to APPROVE a Resolution 
Denying a Variance From Building Height Standards for an Existing Three-Family Residence 
on the Property Located at 2505 Crest Drive 
  
AYES:  Conaway, Gross, Paralusz, Chairperson Andreani 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Ortmann 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 3 of 11 

 
 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
Director Thompson explained the 15-day appeal period and stated that the item will be placed 
on the City Council’s Consent Calendar for their meeting of July 17, 2012.   
 
06/27/12-3 Introduction and Overview of the Manhattan Village Shopping Center 
   Enhancement Project Located on the East Side of Sepulveda Boulevard 
   Between Rosecrans Avenue and Marine Avenue 
 
Director Thompson commented that staff and the applicants have been working closely 
together on the comprehensive master plan to update the mall to a more current design.   
 
Planning Manager Jester summarized the staff report, and provided a power point presentation 
with an outline of what the various presenters would be reviewing tonight.   
 
Mark English, representing RREEF, commented that they believe the enhancement project 
would be a tremendous opportunity for the shopping center.  He indicated that the center 
consists of 44 acres and 570,000 square feet of building area.  He said that their leasing area is 
comparatively small compared to Plaza El Segundo; South Bay Galleria; and Del Amo Mall.  
He commented that the center is currently almost fully occupied, and they would like to expand 
to keep retail revenue in the City.  He pointed out that the project would not require any 
funding from the City.  He stated that their vision is unique to Manhattan Beach.  He 
commented that the business along Sepulveda Boulevard would benefit and property values 
would be increased by the project.  He indicated that the annual sales for the center are 
approximately $270,000,000.00.  He indicated that they would like to create a gateway to 
Manhattan Beach.  He indicated that they also would like to enhance the green belt pedestrian 
bikeway, as the additional pedestrian and bicycle traffic would benefit their businesses.   
 
Mr. English pointed out that RREEF strives for LEED certification for all of its new 
development projects.  He commented that there is a need to improve the circulation and access 
for the Fry’s property.  He stated that they would include green areas as part of the 
redevelopment.  He stated that they want to be certain that they are providing an opportunity 
for the retailers to succeed.  He commented that Fry’s generates a large amount of tax revenue 
for the City.  He indicated that the lease for Fry’s ends in 2016, and it is likely that Fry’s will 
leave the site after the current lease expires.  He indicated that the fact that the Pacific Theater 
has closed adds to the need for the renovation of the site.  He said that the Apple store currently 
occupies a small space in the mall and needs more space to expand.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Paralusz, Mr. English said that the City’s annual 
tax revenue from the center is currently approximately $2,700,000.00. 
 
Mr. English said that they believe they can increase the sales of the existing center with the 
renovation.  He described the proposed new design of the center.  He commented that they are 
hoping that Macy’s will consolidate the men’s store with their main store.  He said that their 
intent is to place the parking garages proximate to the retail stores, which would allow 
customers to quickly find convenient parking.  He indicated that they are planning to use a 
landscaping berm off of 33rd Street next to California Pizza Kitchen to eliminate outbound 
traffic in order to improve the traffic flow.  
 
Mr. English commented that other locations of Fry’s stores are more profitable, as they are 
larger and have a lower rent than in Manhattan Village.  He indicated that they do not know 
whether Fry’s intends to stay in their current location after their lease expires in 2016.   
 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 4 of 11 

 
 

In response to a question from Commissioner Paralusz, Mr. English said that the decision 
regarding renewal of the lease will be a mutual negotiation between RREEF and Fry’s.  He said 
that the existing Fry’s building is obsolete and does not meet the needs of many retailers.  He 
indicated that they believe it is highly unlikely that the building will remain in its configuration 
after the lease for Fry’s expires.  He said that the intent is to create an open air outdoor center.  
He commented that they would like to attract the type of tenants that would be desired by 
residents of the City.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Conaway, Mr. English indicated that the 
majority of customers at the center live in Manhattan Beach.  He said that they are not 
attempting with the project to greatly expand and become more of a regional draw.   
 
Stephanie Eyestone-Jones, representing Matrix Environmental, stated that the intent of CEQA 
(the California Environmental Quality Act) is to inform City decision makers and the public 
regarding potential environmental impacts of a project; to reduce potential environmental 
impacts; to encourage coordination between agencies; and to encourage public participation.  
She commented that CEQA does not apply to projects that are approved administratively.  She 
said that the initial study to determine potential significant impacts for the project was begun in 
2009 which determined that an EIR was warranted.  She commented that a Notice of 
Preparation was sent to the public within a 500 foot radius of the site and agencies throughout 
Los Angeles County.  She indicated that the comment period for the Notice of Preparation 
began on January 29, 2009, and ended on March 2, 2009.  She stated that there was a scoping 
meeting during the public review period where people were invited to learn more about the 
project and provide input on the draft EIR.  She indicated that the draft EIR was recently 
released.  She commented that the public review period for the draft EIR started on June 7 and 
will end on July 23rd.  She indicated that notice of the draft EIR review period went to everyone 
who participated in scoping meetings; everyone who commented at the scoping meeting; and to 
property owners within 500 feet of the subject site.  She stated that the final EIR will include 
responses to the comments that have been received; a mitigation monitoring program; and 
changes or additions that have been made to the project since the draft EIR was written.  She 
indicated that several meetings will take place before the Commission and City Council after 
the final EIR is completed.  She commented that the Mayor will sign the Development 
Agreement Ordinance if the project is approved, which will be followed by a Notice of 
Determination.   
 
Ms. Eyestone-Jones indicated that the EIR contains a summary; project description; impact 
analysis; and analysis of project alternatives.  She stated that the EIR also includes impacts and 
mitigation measures; impacts found not to be significant; and references.  She indicated that the 
draft EIR evaluates issues regarding aesthetics; air quality including greenhouse gas emissions 
and hazardous materials; hydrology; land use; noise; fire protection; police protection; traffic; 
access to parking; water supply; and waste water.  She indicated that they have determined 
through the analysis that the project would not result in significant environmental impacts.  She 
pointed out that mitigation measures are included in the draft EIR for many of the issues.  She 
indicated that there is a chart of the topics that require mitigation measures included with the 
summary of the EIR.  
 
Director Thompson pointed out that the entitlement process will not yet be completed when the 
EIR is finalized and approved.  He said that there will still be opportunities for the public to 
provide comments even after the EIR is finalized through the Use Permit process.    
 
Sarah Drobis, representing Gibson Transportation, stated that the comments that are received 
related to traffic throughout the process will be incorporated into the Final EIR and responses 
will be provided as part of the Final EIR.  She indicated that their study analyzed 13 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 5 of 11 

 
 

intersections including driveways that access the site along Sepulveda Boulevard, Rosecrans 
Avenue, and Marine Avenue.  She commented that they looked at the intersections that carry a 
high volume of traffic during peak periods.  She said that they focused on the weekday 
afternoon peak hour traffic and mid-day Saturday peak traffic.  She said that the traffic counts 
were conducted in 2009, and updated counts were done in 2010 and 2011.  She indicated that 
the traffic forecasts from 2009 far exceeded the actual traffic counts taken in 2011.  She said 
that they also looked at traffic counts taken during different times of the year.  She indicated 
that they looked at traffic in summer and non-summer months.  
 
Ms. Drobis commented that they looked at several configurations of the Fry’s driveway on 
Rosecrans Avenue.  She said that the driveway further to the east on Rosecrans Avenue is 
proposed to be moved further west.  She commented that the existing shopping center generates 
approximately 2,351 trips during the peak hour.  She said that the total project as proposed 
would generate approximately the same number of trips as the existing uses in the center.  She 
indicated that the cinema and Fry’s uses generate twice the amount of traffic as the typical 
shopping center use.  She commented that the greatest traffic impact would occur when the 
northeast corner of the site is developed.  She indicated that they determined that there would 
be no significant impacts resulting from the project during peak hours.  She commented that the 
applicant is dedicating right-of-way for a Sepulveda Bridge widening project to allow for 
continuation of a travel lane.  She said that a deceleration lane is proposed along Rosecrans 
Avenue to allow for better access to the center from Rosecrans Avenue.  She commented that 
improvements are also proposed to the entry point to the center from Cedar Way.  She 
commented that separate bicycle and pedestrian connections are proposed for Veterans 
Parkway.  She said that internal circulation improvements are proposed.  She stated that there is 
a construction management plan proposed as part of the project to minimize the impacts of 
construction including parking for construction workers and construction vehicle traffic.    
 
Ms. Drobis indicated that the project would provide a clearer pedestrian path to connect 
different parts of the center.  She said that a pedestrian circulation improvement plan is 
proposed as part of the project to enhance pedestrian safety and improve ADA access.  She said 
that the proposal would provide a better connection of the Fry’s parcel to the shopping center.  
She indicated that the bicycle parking facilities are proposed to be increased by 140 spaces 
throughout the center.  She commented that there currently are 2,393 parking spaces in the 
center which is proposed to increase to 2,935 parking spaces.  She indicated that the applicant 
is proposing to maintain the existing 4.1/1000 square foot parking ratio.  She stated that the 
parking demand would be met during construction.  She commented that a parking 
management plan is proposed as part of the project which would include measures to address 
parking for construction workers. She said that the construction management plan would also 
have provisions for staging of construction equipment on public streets. 
 
In response to a comment from Commissioner Ortmann, Ms. Drobis indicated that they wanted 
to be certain that the existing parking ratio would be maintained for the shopping center with 
the proposed addition of square footage.  She said that the goal is to reduce the parking demand 
further by providing better pedestrian and bicycle access.   
 
Ms. Drobis commented that the project would not result in a significant impact to traffic or 
parking for the center; construction would be scheduled to meet the parking demands and 
maintain the existing parking ratio; and internal as well as external circulation improvements 
are proposed be included as part of the project.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Gross, Ms. Drobis indicated that providing a 
separation between bicycle, pedestrian, and vehicle traffic would be a project design issue and 
not included as part of the environmental review.   



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 6 of 11 

 
 

 
Director Thompson stated that the suggestion of Commissioner Gross regarding separation of 
vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic will be addressed in the project even if it is not 
addressed as part of the EIR.   
  
Commissioner Gross requested that lighting be added at the parking deck over the railroad 
right-of-way at all times.  He suggested that the area underneath the Sepulveda Bridge be 
incorporated with the plan for bicycle and pedestrian traffic.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Gross, Planning Manager Jester said that there is 
a mitigation monitoring program.  She indicated that all of the conditions that are included in 
the monitoring program are addressed through plan check, construction, or during operations.   
She commented that the applicant will work with the City to make sure the conditions are met.   
 
Commissioner Paralusz said that there is a great deal of information in the executive summary 
included with the EIR regarding potential impacts to the air, water, emissions, odors, and 
surface water quality.  She asked at what point those issues would be addressed in more detail 
as part of the discussion of the project.   
 
Director Thompson pointed out that there will be several hearings regarding the project with 
opportunities for questions.  He indicated that staff can have experts provide further 
information if requested by the Commission.    
 
Chairperson Andreani said that she would like further information regarding the increase of 
974 metric tons of carbon dioxide that would be released as indicated in the report.  She asked 
regarding the extent that the increased emissions would be considered significant beyond the 
amount currently being emitted.  She said that she would like further information regarding the 
standard for greenhouse gas emissions and the impact of increasing emissions.  She commented 
that it would seem the goal should be to reduce emissions.  She commented that she would 
anticipate that there would be questions that arise regarding the increase in emissions that 
would result from the project. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Conaway, Planning Manager Jester said that the 
height methodology used by the City does not work well for large sites along the Sepulveda 
Boulevard corridor.  She indicated that the Code allows a height limit of 22 feet for buildings 
with a flat roof and a height limit of 30 feet for buildings with a sloped roof or with parking 
structures.  She stated that there is not enough height to accommodate two levels for a large 
department store with the maximum height limit established in the Code.  She said that a height 
Variance has historically been granted for the site, and the proposal is to match the existing 
heights.  She commented that the Macy’s store has a maximum height of 42 feet.  She stated 
that the heights will be addressed in detail through the Variance process.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Conaway, Ms. Eyestone-Jones said that there 
has been an analysis of the permeable surfaces that would be included with the proposal.  She 
pointed out that there are current regulations for addressing storm water runoff that will apply 
to the new development which did not apply to the original development.  She indicated that 
the amount of permeable surfaces remains about the same as existing with the new 
development, but the water quality would improve with the project.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Conaway, Ms. Eyestone-Jones indicated that 
there would be an increase in carbon dioxide emissions from the project.  She indicated, 
however, that sustainability features are included as part of the project.  She stated that the 
analysis determined that the increase of emissions would be a less than significant impact.  She 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 7 of 11 

 
 

said that the emission of greenhouse gasses would not be reduced by the project, but the 
thresholds for greenhouse gasses would not be exceeded.   
 
Commissioner Paralusz commented that there is a lack of continuous sidewalks along the back 
side and the western portion of the site.  She suggested that a pedestrian walkway be extended 
along the outer edge of the parking lot.   
 
Commissioner Ortmann said that he does not see that the project provides any improvement to 
mass transit access to the site.   
 
Mr. English said that providing access for mass transit would require changes to the site plan. 
He indicated that they can look at the possibility of providing access for mass transit.  He 
commented that making the site more accessible by mass transit would reduce the amount of 
traffic and parking congestion at the site.   
 
Commissioner Paralusz pointed out that the majority of people who shop at the mall who live 
nearby would most likely not use mass transit.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Gross, Planning Manager Jester said that there is 
no proposed change from the approved uses in the original Master Use Permit.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Gross, Planning Manager Jester indicated that the 
4.1 parking ratio is a composite of all of the restaurant, retail, and office uses in the center.  She 
stated that there currently is a cap on the amount of square footage for restaurant uses that are 
permitted for the center, and an increase beyond the maximum cap would require additional 
parking.   
 
In response to a question from Chairperson Andreani, Planning Manager Jester said that 
Macy’s and the Hacienda Building are under separate ownership from the rest of the center and 
the Hacienda building and Fry’s have separate Use Permits.  She indicated that the Fry’s 
property was previously under separate ownership but now is owned by RREEF.  She said that 
the permit for the Hacienda Building incorporates the Master Use Permit for the mall, although 
it allows them separate restaurant and alcohol uses.  She said that the entire site everything will 
be included under the new Master Use Permit, EIR, Variance and Sign Program/Exception.   
 
In response to a question from Chairperson Andreani, Planning Manager Jester said that the 
project would require a Sign Exception, as the permitted height, square footage, and number of 
signs would be exceeded.  She stated that there currently is a Sign Exception and a Sign 
Program for the center that would be modified with the proposal.   
 
Chairperson Andreani opened the public hearing. 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 8 of 11 

 
 

Audience Participation 
 
Alan Bloom, a resident of Park Place, said that he would like to know about the impact that the 
project would have to traffic at the intersection of Village Drive and Rosecrans Avenue.  He 
commented that he is concerned with Village Drive becoming a major intersection with a great 
deal of traffic and noise.   
 
Chris Prodromides, a resident of the 3100 block of Oak Avenue, indicated that they are 
concerned that the project would be so large in order to be competitive that it would attract a 
large number of people from other areas and would increase traffic and pollution.  He 
commented that they are concerned with the addition of large parking structures and taller 
buildings.  He stated that they also have a concern with light pollution at night and noise 
bouncing off of the tall parking structures and coming into the adjacent neighborhood.  He is 
concerned with pedestrian safety, and feels it is unsafe in front of Ralph’s already. He said that 
the intersection of Rosecrans Avenue and Sepulveda Boulevard would become more congested 
with the project.  He indicated that more people will cut through on the adjacent streets in the 
residential areas on Oak to avoid traffic on Sepulveda Boulevard, more than they already do.  
He said that they are also concerned with an increase in crime resulting from the proposed 
expansion of the mall, particularly in the tunnel underground parking.  He commented that 
additional high-end shops would make the mall a greater target for crime.  He said that they 
appreciate that the existing mall is small and serves the local community rather than being a 
regional draw.  He is concerned with air, light and noise pollution. 
 
Marilynn Holcomb, a resident of the 1000 block of 33rd Street, said that they want additional 
lighting in order to provide for safety but would not want not to have it shining into their 
homes.  She commented that they are concerned about security with increasing the use of the 
walkway and bikeway from Veterans Parkway.  She stated that they are also concerned that the 
project would result in an increase of traffic from Ardmore to 33rd Street, in the area they call 
“dead mans curve”.  She indicated that the residents enjoy having a smaller community 
shopping center and would not want it to become more of a regional draw.  She asked whether 
the impact that would result from the second phase of the El Segundo project is addressed in 
the EIR.  
 
Bill Victor, a Manhattan Beach resident, said that the existing shopping center is beautiful, 
although it perhaps could be updated.  He pointed out that a police officer was killed at the mall 
by someone from outside of the local area, and security at the center is a concern.  He 
commented that the expansion of the mall would attract more people from other areas.  He said 
that the charm of the existing center is that it is smaller and accessible.  He said that the 
addition of parking garages and additional shopping area would increase traffic and congestion.  
He indicated that local residents may choose not to shop at the center if it becomes larger and 
extremely congested.  He said that the mall should not become a destination point for people 
from other areas.  He commented that the City should maximize and enjoy the benefits of 
having a small town atmosphere, and we should keep the theater.   
 
Faith Lyons, a resident of the 500 block of 33rd Street, pointed out that there was a great deal 
of concern when the Metlox development was being proposed that it would be too large, but it 
ended up turning out very well, and the underground parking is very safe.   
 
Robin Gohlke, a resident of the 3200 block of Oak Avenue, commented that the largest 
concern that has been expressed regarding the project appears to be the addition of parking 
garages.  It is big ugly walls and the sound will bounce off of it. She pointed out that the 
parking garage for the Metlox development is underground rather than a structure above 
ground.   



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 9 of 11 

 
 

 
Steve Packwood, a resident of the 3100 block of Oak Avenue, agreed with his neighbors that 
the mall should be kept small and community oriented. He indicated that more lighting for 
larger buildings as proposed would impact the adjacent residents.  He indicated that there are 
minimum security problems with the existing outdoor parking area.  He said, however, that the 
addition of four high rise parking structures as proposed would result in more crime.  He 
commented that he is glad that a security plan is included as part of the project, and he 
suggested that it be very detailed.  The parking garages are tall, plus have tall lights on top and 
sound will bounce off the sides of the garages.  
 
Chairperson Andreani closed the public hearing. 
 

Commission Discussion 
 

Director Thompson encouraged members of the public who are interested to look at the 
information about the EIR on the City’s website.  He said that the issues of parking, traffic, and 
noise are addressed in the EIR.  He said that there has been a great deal of analysis regarding 
traffic and the impact to the adjacent neighborhood.  He commented that there have been many 
discussions regarding the impact that the project and the Plaza El Segundo project would have 
to the intersection of Rosecrans Avenue and Sepulveda Boulevard.  He said that the website 
also includes pictures, elevations, and site plans.  He indicated that all interested parties are 
also invited to attend the future hearings and meetings regarding the proposal.   
 
Chairperson Andreani asked if there are any plans to possibly open an independent theater on 
the site.   
 
Mr. English commented that it was not the decision of RREEF for the Pacific Theaters to 
close.  He commented that the loss of the theater was one of the driving factors in redesigning 
the site.  He said that the proposal is to add predominantly retail uses and some restaurant uses.   
 
Chuck Fancher, representing RREEF, said that films could not be distributed to a new theater 
use in Manhattan Village because of the close proximity to the Arclight site in Manhattan 
Beach, which has a higher volume of customer so they get the best movies and more of the new 
releases on opening days. 
 
Mr. English commented that they have noted the comments of the Commissioners and 
members of the public who have spoken at the meeting.  He said that they intend to continue to 
collaborate with the community and staff on the project.  He commented that they have noted 
that a number of residents from Oak Avenue are present at the hearing, and they are happy to 
meet with any residents regarding their concerns.   
 
Commissioner Paralusz thanked staff, the consultants, and the members of the public who 
spoke at the hearing regarding the project.  She commented that there is not often the 
opportunity to develop such a large site.  She indicated that she is excited about the project 
provided that it addresses the concerns that have been raised.  She stated that she also shares 
the concerns of the adjacent residents regarding parking, traffic, aesthetics, and security.  She 
said that there is a concern that the project would change the small town feel of the community.  
She suggested that anyone who has an interest in the project read the executive summary of the 
EIR.  She pointed out that the developer has a right to develop the property.  She also pointed 
out that the applicant would not want a result that would lose customers.  She said that the 
pedestrian circulation plan is important and should continue around the site, integrated 
internally and externally.  She commented that it is an important project for the City, as the 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 10 of 11 

 
 

center generates a large amount of tax revenue.  She encouraged residents to send questions 
and comments and continue to be involved in the project.   
 
Commissioner Conaway thanked staff, the consultants, and the members of the community for 
participating in the hearing.  He commented that now is the opportunity for members of the 
community to be involved with the project.  He suggested that the connection of the center to 
the Sepulveda Bridge underpass/Veterans parkway with a walkway and bikeway be more 
clearly defined.  He indicated that the access point from the Sepulveda Bridge should be made 
an “arrival point” to the center for pedestrians and bicyclists, encouraging access.  He 
commented that providing a pathway for bicyclists through the site does not appear to have 
been addressed.  He suggested activating the northwest corner of the site and look into the 
possibility of having retail uses on top of the parking structure at that northwest corner and 
possibly tie in with pedestrians and bicyclists.  He said that he is concerned with the glare of 
the lighting and security issues resulting from the proposed parking structures.  He pointed out 
that the project is a rare opportunity to address storm water mitigation for the site, and go 
beyond the minimum mitigation required.   
 
Commissioner Gross commended staff and the applicant on the project and for defining the 
process which will allow for a great amount of input.  He said that he echoes the comments of 
Commissioner Conaway regarding the importance of providing bicycle access, particularly at 
the Sepulveda Bridge.  He pointed out that the Sepulveda Bridge is the only point to ride a 
bicycle or walk across Sepulveda Boulevard safely, and it would help the shopping center for it 
to be incorporated as an entry point.  He was not clear on how this lower level with connects up 
to the main mall level. He commented that opening Cedar Way to Rosecrans Avenue and 
making it pedestrian friendly are good objectives.  He suggested that the project would be a 
good opportunity to widen Cedar Way and provide separate paths for vehicles, pedestrians, and 
bicycles.  He said that he hopes the applicant is taking notes and listening to the comments that 
have been made at the hearing.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Paralusz, Commissioner Gross said that he would 
leave it to the experts to determine the best method of allowing bicycles to coexist on Cedar 
Way with vehicles and pedestrians.   
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Ortmann, Director Thompson pointed out that 
details regarding the architectural design and building elevations will come through the 
entitlement process.  He indicated that the first stage of the project is the environmental review 
process.  He commented that staff is receiving questions during the comment period for the 
draft EIR and will provide responses with the final version of the document.  He indicated that 
public hearings for the Master Use Permit, the Variance request, and the Sign 
Program/Exception will follow.  He pointed out that the purpose of this hearing is mainly to 
introduce and provide an overview of the proposal, and there is still an opportunity to raise any 
concerns.  He indicated that he anticipates that there will be several changes to the project after 
the EIR is finalized.   
 
Commissioner Ortmann commented that he feels the project is an opportunity to do something 
really special with the site.  He indicated that he has not heard anyone opposed to renovating 
the center.  He commented that he feels the opportunity for developing the northwest corner is 
lost with the current proposal.  He said that the current design for the northwest corner provides 
an inward focus to the center rather than an inviting access point for pedestrians and bicyclists 
to draw people in. He feels the entire project site needs to better integrate and relate the outside 
and inside of the site.   
 



[ Draft] Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of     
June 27, 2012  Page 11 of 11 

 
 

Chairperson Andreani thanked the members of the public who spoke at the hearing as well as 
the consultants and staff.  She pointed out that there will be many opportunities for members of 
the public to provide comments on the project.  She said that she agrees with the comments of 
the other Commissioners.  She indicated that she does have a concern with the impact to traffic 
along Sepulveda Boulevard and Rosecrans Avenue resulting from the project along with the 
development of the second phase of Plaza El Segundo.  She said that she is also concerned 
regarding the building height and mass of the project.  She commented that the current design 
of the northwest corner is not inviting, but she is also is concerned with traffic at the 
intersection of Sepulveda Boulevard and Rosecrans Avenue.  She indicated that there is a 
concern that there is not enough street level parking at the center; however, she has concerns 
with the security with the addition of four parking structures.  She indicated that she would like 
for a clear separation to be provided for vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian traffic, and have access 
better integrated throughout the site.  She stated that she would also like for pedestrian 
walkways to be provided through the center as well as around the perimeter.  She said that she 
would like more information regarding the mitigation and impacts of greenhouse gas emissions 
and wastewater management.  She indicated that she trusts the applicant wants to work with the 
community further on the project.   
 
Director Thompson said that he expects the next hearing on the item to be scheduled for 
September 26, 2012.  He indicated that members of the public can also follow the project on 
the City’s website and can submit any questions or comments to staff.   
 
5.  DIRECTORS ITEMS   
 
6.   PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS 
 
7.  TENTATIVE AGENDA    July 11, 2012 
  
8.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. to Wednesday, July 11, 2012, in the City Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 1400 Highland Avenue   
        
 
       SARAH BOESCHEN   
       Recording Secretary 
ATTEST: 
       
     
RICHARD THOMPSON 
Community Development Director     
 


